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Financial Highlights

Operating Result
Interest Income (Rs Mn) 1,449 1,266 1016 831 Ho3
Net Gaind(Loss ) from FVTPL (Rs Mn) 472 353) | 314 | (98) 4
Interest xpenses (Rs Mn) (L021) | (892) | (713) | (3534) | (371)
Net Operating Income (Rs Mn) 954 66 682 176 325
Operating Expenses, Provisions, VAT & NBT (186) {63) (143) | (67) {72)
Profit before Taxation (Rs Mn) 768 3 339 109 A
[ncome Tax [xpenses (Rs Mn) (253) (3) (176) | 3 (78)
Profit for the vear (Rs Mn) 515 0.0355 363 79 175
| Farnings per Share (Rs.) 3.03 00003 | 6.84 5.29 1162
Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Rs Mn) 169 3 5 4 3
(ther Financial Assets (Rs Mn) 15614 | 15815 | 8588 | 10,708 | 8495
Loans & Advances (Rs Mn) 71 25 279 11 237
Property, Plant & Equipment/Intangible Assels (Rs
Mn) . 6 3 4 2 2
Oither Asscts (Rs Mn) 177 326 283 132 28
Total Asscts 15986 | 16,172 | 9,159 | 10,862 | 8,770
Liabilities & Equity
Borrowings (Rs Mn) 12414 | 13.441 | 7,030 | 9.143 | 6,927
{her Liabilities (Rs Mn) 235 7 184 28 38
Fquity (Rs Mn) 3337 | 2,723 | 1,945 | 1.691 | 1,785
Total Liabilities & Equity 15,986 | 16,172 | 9,159 | 10,862 | 8,770
Ratios
Return on Equity (%) 17.01 | 0.0015 | 1996 | 645 14.6
Return on Investment (%) 332 3.03 3.09 2.28 3.69
MNet Profit Ratio (%) 2603 | 0.0037 | 25.94 | 10.83 | 3649
Average Yield 10.50 10.35 | 10,17 | 9.64 7.76
Other Information
MNo. of Employees T | 18 | 16 | 1
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Company Profile

Vision

“To be the most trusted Primary Dealer.”

Mission

“To cacced customer expeclations by providing a comprehensive and competilive product
range and services in the Government Sccuritics and in corporate debt market thereby
ensuring the long term growth & viability of the Company ™

Introductinm

The N5B Fund Management Co. Ltd had commenced business on 0 1** March 2000, as one of
the dedicated Primary Dealer (PD) Companies appointed by the Central Bank under the new
Primary Dealer system to deal exclusively in primary and secondary market transactions of
Giovernment Securities. The Company is now one of the main primary Dealers among seven
standalone PD Companies and six PD Units of Commercial Banks,

Operating Structure

- As the' fully owned subsidiary of National Savings Bank, the Company is always in line with
the best business practices of the Bank and has the privilege of serving the customer with a
large portfolio in Government Sccurities,

Customers

The NSB FMC currently has high net worlh individual and institutional customers, Those
mainly include the large investment Funds of Sri Lanka. Customer base includes Central
Bank Provident Fund, Private Provident Funds, Lniversities Grant Commission ele. ..

Business Lines

All functions related to Primary Dealer |icense,

Financial Services
i.  Participate in Primary Auctions of the (Government securities
ii.  Custodian Services

iil.  Trustee Services including Collateral Manager Services

Agency Services

i. Designated agent appointed by the Central Bank tor issues of Sri Lanka Development
Bonds (SLDB) denominated in LS Dollars.

ii.  License of Debl Dealer/Broker.

Annual Bepoit - 2018 m
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Performances Review

Market Overview 2019

GDE and Sectorial Growth

Sri Lanka graduated to the upper middle
income country status in terms of per
capita Gross National Tncome {(GNI, as
per the World bank’s country classitication
in 2019, The value of the country’s Giross
Domestic Product (GDP) at current market
prices was U5 dollars 84.0 billion in 20104,
compared to US dollars 884 billion in
2018, Per capita GDP and per capita GNI
at current market prices were estimated at
US dollars 3,852 and US dollars 3,741,
respectively. in 2019, in comparison to LS
cdollars 4,079 and US  dollars 3,468,
respectively, in the previous year. Subdued
cconomic growth, coupled with the sharp
depreciation ol the Sri Lankan rupee
towards end 2018, which resulied in a
substantially depreciated average exchange
rate in 2019, caused the decline in these
indicators in 2019 from the levels
observed in the previous year.

The Sri Lankan economy rccorded a
subdued growth of 2.3 per cent in 2019,
comparcd to the growth ol 3.3 per cent in

2018, as per the provisional estimates of

GDP ol the Department of census and
Statistics (%), All major sectors of the
economy recorded positive, bul modest
growth rates. The agriculture sector
recorded a growth of 0.6 per cent in 2019
compared 1o the growth of 6.3 per cent in
2018. Meanwhile, the industry sector
registered a growth of 2.7 per cent in 2019,
compared Lo the growth of 1.2 per cent in
the previous year. Meanwhile. with the
impact of the Faster Sunday attacks on
tourism related activities. the growth of the
services scctor decelerated significantly to
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23 per cent in 2014, compared to the
growth of 4.6 per cent in 2018,

The share of consumption expenditure in
GDP at current prices increased to 78.7 per
cent in 2019 [rom 77.0 per cent in the
previous vear, Net external demand for
apods and services improved in real erms
by 23.2 per cent, and its share in GDP at
current prices also improved to -6.1 per
cent in 2019, from -7.4 per cent in 2018.
Mcanwhile, the share of investment in
GDP at current prices declined sharply to
274 per cent in 2019, compared to 30.4
per cent in the previous year, recording a
negative real growth in investment of 9.5
per cenl, Domestic savings as a percentage
of GDIP at current prices declined to 21.3
per cent in 2019 from 23.0 per cenl
recorded in 2018, while national savings as
a percentage of GDP also declined to 25.3
per cent in 2019 from 27.3 per cent in the
previous vear, However, due to the higher
contraction in investment expenditure,
both the domestic savings-investmenl gap
as well as the national savings-invesiment
gap narrowed in 2019 w 6.1 per cent and
2.1 per cent of GDP, respectively, from 7.4
per cent and 3.1 per cent of GDP in 2018.
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External Performances
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Policies to curtail import expenditure
resulted in a notable improvement in the
trade and current account balances, which,
along with significant inflows to the
financial account, helped strengthen gross
. official reserves and stabilise the exchange
rate. The current account deficit declined
in 2019, as the improvemenl in the
merchandise trade balance outweighed the
moderation in  trade in  services and
secondary income as well as the widening
of the primary income deficit. Meanwhile,
the financial account recorded significant
inflows in 2019, including procesds of the
[nternational Sovereign Bonds (15Bs) and
the receipt of two tranches of the Extended
Fund Facility of the International
Monctary  Fund  (IMF-EFI). [owever,
inward foreign direct investment (FDI)
maoderated, while foreign investment in the
government  securities market and  the
Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) recorded
net ouifllows in 2019, Mceanwhile, notable
debl repayvments were recorded by the
governmenl  in 20109, including the
seltlement of two ISBs and the scheduled
repavments on syndicated loan facilities.
This reflected the surplus in the owerall
balance of BOP in 2019, Meanwhile, the
Sri Lankan rupce recorded a marginal
appreciation of 0.6 per cent against the LS
dollar in 2019, compared to the significant
depreciation recorded in 2018, Reflecting
the nominal appreciation of the Sri Lankan
rupee against the currencies ol several
major trading pariners together with the
movements in the cross curreney exchange
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rates.  both  the Nominal Elleetive
Ixchange Rate (NEER) and the Real
Effective Exchange Rate (REER) indices
appreciated in 2019,

Inflation

Despite transient supply side disturbances,
both headling and core inflation moved
broadly in the desired range of 4-6 per cent
during 2019, CCPl based year-on-year
headline inflation was recorded at 4.8 per
cent in December 2019, in comparison to
28 per cent in December 2018,
Meanwhile, headline infllation, based on
the National Consumer Price Index (NCPLL
2013=100) that attributes a higher weight
to food items, followed the trend of CCPI
based inflation during the first hall of
2019, although remaining notably low.
Accordingly, in December 2019, year-on-
vear core inflation based on the CCPL and
the NCPI remained at 4.8 per cent and 3.2
per cent, respeclively. compared to 3.1 per
cent recorded by bhoth the indiccs in
December 2018. In the first quarter of
2020, core inflation based on the CCPI and
the NCPI decelerated, mostly on account
ol the base cifeet, and was recorded at 2.9
per cent and 3.2 per cenl, respectively. in
March 2020.
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Monetary Policy stance of the central
Bank of Sri Lanka

The central Bank  adopted  an
accommaodative monelary policy stance in
2019 amidst prolonged subpar economic
activity exacerbated by Easter Sunday
attacks, muted inflation, [avourable
inflation outlook, rapidly decelerating
private  sector credit  growth, and
increasingly  easing  monetary  policy
alobally. The SDFR and the SLIR of the
Central Bank were then reduced by 50
basis points each Lo 7.50 per cent and §.30
per cent, respectively, in May 2019, thus
ending the neutral monetary policy stance
maintained since April 2018.

Vieanwhile, the Central Bank reduced the
SRR applicable on all rupee deposit
lighilitiecs of [.CBs by a further 1.00
percentage point in March 2019, With a
view lo inducing a sizable reduction in
market lending rates, the Central Bank
reduced the SDFR and the SLTR further
by 50 basis points to 7.00 per cent and
8.00 per cent, respectively, effective 23
August 2019, Considering the need to
signal the expectation of a continued
reduction in market lending rates lo
supporl the revival of cconomic activity in
the context ol the favourable inflation
outlook and well contained inflation
expectations, the Central Bank reduced the
SDFR and the SLFR further by 50 basis
points 10 6.50 per cent and 7.50 per cent.
respectively, elfective 30 January 20200

Meanwhile. considering the urgent need to
support economic activity and the financial
sector with the rapid spread of the
COVID-19 pandemic and ils possible
further spread in Sri Lanka, the Ceniral
Bank reduced the SDFR and the SLFR of
the Central Bank by 25 basis points to 6.23
per cent and 7.23 per cent, respectively,
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with elfect from 17 March 2020, At the
same time, in order to cnable LCBs to
gxecule  their {ransactions
smoothly and reduce their cost of funds
further. the Central Bank reduced SER on
all rupce deposit liabilities of LCBs by
1.00 percentage point o 4.8} per cent.
effective from the reserve maintenance
period commencing 16 March 2020. The
SDIFR and the SLFR of the Central Bank
were further reduced by 25 basis points to
6.00 per cent and T.00 per cent,
respectively, clfective from the close of
business on 03 April 2020, and this
decision is expected to complement the
measures that have been taken thus far to
ease market conditions, and enable the
domestic financial market to provide
further relief to businesses and individuals
alTected by the outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic and restrictions placed to
contain its spread within the country.

financial
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Yields on Government Securities

Reflecting eased monetary conditions,
vields on government securitics showed a
notahle decline during 2019, although a
marginal uptick in yields on treasury bills
was observed towards the latter part of
2019 due to weakened sentiments amidst
the rising funding requirement of the
government. Surplus
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liquidity conditions along with the
accommodalive monetary policy stance of
the Central Bank. availability of foreign
financing with the proceeds of I[SB
issuances in March and June 2019,
streamlined  Treasury  bond  primary
auction system and well anchored inflation
capeclations resulled in a notable decline
in ¥ields on government sccuritics during
2019 compared to the levels observed at
cnd 2018, The release ol liguidily through
the reduction of the SRR in November
2018 and March 2019 by the Central Bank
prompted most  commaercial banks (o
increase government
seeuritics, given the sluggish growth of
credit to the private sector.

investment  In

The imposition of caps on deposit inlerest
rates otffered by financial institutions in
April 20019, which resulted in a notable
decling in deposit interest rates, would also
have contributed to reducing wvields on
governmentl securilies due to the possible
shift of savings from [inancial institutions
o govermment securities. |lowever, some
uplick in wields on Treasury bills was
chserved during late 20109, rellecting the
impact of outflows of foreign investment
from the government sccuritics market,
uncertainty in the direction of fiscal policy
and increased funding requirement of the
government,

In spite of this uptick, primary market
yields on 9l-day, 182-day and 364-day
Treasury bills decreased by 250 basis
points, 197 basis points and 275 basis
points o 751 per cent, 8.02 per cenl and
8.45 per cent, respectively. during 2019.
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Consistent with the overall reduction in
market interest rates, vields on treasury
bonds in the primary market declined
substantially during 2019, while the
government also issucd forcign currency
denominated  debt
compelitive yviclds. The government relied
more on short to medium term Treasury
bond issuances during the first hall of
2019, while Treasury bonds with longer
maturitics of 10 1o 20 vears were issued
mostly during the second half of 2019.

instruments at

Accordingly, Treasury bond yields on
short to medium maturities declined by
around 182-223 basis points, while yields
on longer maturities recorded a decline of
around 131-200 basis points in the primary
markel during 2019, With these declines,
vields on maturities of 10 vears, 15 vears
and 20 ycars were recorded at 10.23 per
cent. 10.59 per cent and 10.68 per cent.
respectively, by end 2019. Further, in carly
2020. vields on 10-year ‘Treasury bonds
fell below 10 per cent, recording the
lowest viclds on 10-vear maturities after
2015, Moticeably, the upward pressure
observed in the vields on Treasury bills
towards end 2019 was not observed in the
primary ‘| reasury bond market.

Meanwhile, the government issued foreign
currency  denominated debt  securities,
namely, Sri Lanka Development Bonds
(SLDBs) and 18Bs during
the vear, which also helped
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ease the pressure on yields on rupee
denominated debt instruments to some
extent. The government issued short and
medium term US dollar denominated
SLIDBs at various fixed and floating rates
in auctions held in January and May 2019,
thereby raising US dollars 179.7 million,
and 1S dollars 1635.5 million, respectively.

Interest rates of SLIDB issuances across all
tenures showed mixed movements during
2019. Further, the two [SB issuances in
March and June 2019 raised US dollars 2.4
hillion and US dollars 2.0  billion,
respectively. In March 2019, ISBs of 5-
vear and 10-year tenures were issued at
6.85 per cent and 783 peor  cent
respectively, which were 441-321 basis
_points. above the corresponding  US
Treasury vields at the time. 15Bs of 5-year
and 10-vear lenurcs were issucd in June
2019 al 6.35 per cent and 7.33 per cent,
respeetively, which were 460-353 basis
points above the corresponding US
Treasury yields al the time of issuance.
Reflecting  the  overall  downward
adjustment in primary market viclds, the
secondary  market  yield curve  for
government securities shilied downwards
during the wear 2019 with a greater
downward shilt in short to medium term
vields. Accordingly, yiclds on 91-day,
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182-day and 364-day Treasury bills in the
secondary market decreased by 2135 basis
points, 208 basis points and 253 basis
points, respectively, to 7.52 per cent, 7.88
per cent and 8.36 per cent by end 2019,
compared to the yields recorded at end
2018. Treasury bond vields also decreased
by around 164 to 256 basis points during
2019, Secondary market vields on 2-year
bonds decreascd by 256 basis points to
8.60 per cent, while yiclds on 5-ycar and
10-year Treasury bonds decreased by 191
basis points and 182  basis points,
respectively, to 9.67 per cent and 10.05 per
cent by end 2019, in comparison to the
yiclds at end 2018, The downward shift in
the vield reflected improved markel
sentiments following the ISB issuances,
cased monetary policy and monetary
conditions, and also well anchored
inflation expectalions.
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Company Performance

In the year 2019, the Company recorded an operational profit of Rs. 515 Million. The profit
for the year has significantly increased comparison to the operational profit recorded in 2018,
due to the favourable market conditions which resulted in Rs. 380 Million of unrealized mark

to market gain on Government Security Trading Portfolio for the vear 2019 against the loss
recorded in 2018.

Movement of Net Trading Gain/(Loss) for last five years are as follows,

Met Trading Gain/{Loss)
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The net interest income of Government securities increased to Rs, 428.5 Million in this year
when compared to Rs. 374 Million in 2018, showing an increase of 15 per cenl. Realized
Gain [rom the sale of 'I-bills & bonds were Rs. 91.4 Million in 2019. The fee income of the
company also increased by 18% in the year 2019 compared 1o that of year 2018.

Net Interest Income, fee Income and Net Profit for the year for last five vears reflect as
follows,

Performance of the Company for last 05 Years
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The Company paid Rs 119.9 Million by way of Value Added Tax (VAT) and also provided
Rs. 252.5 Million as income tax expense for 2019, Earnings Per Share (EPS) also increased
significantly to 3.03 compared to preceding year,

Net assets of the Company stood at Rs. 3.337 Million as at 31" December 2019 in
comparison to Rs.2,722.8 Million as at 31" December 2018, This is mainly due to the
increase in net profit.

Total assets of the company stood at Rs. 15,986 Million by the end of 2019 compared to Rs.
16,171 Million in 2018,

Repo barrowings of the Company decreased to Rs. 12,414 Million in 2019 from Rs. 13.441
Million in 2018,

Portfolio composition and the average portfolio yield of the Company as at 31.12.2019 has
heen illustrated in the below charts.

Portfolio Composition

= Type = Treasucy Bill (FVPLY Treasury Bonds (FVOCTH

Treasury Bonds (FVPL) = Treasury donds (AC) » Teberfures

Average Yield

14.00%
12 D0 12.08%

1000%

800
600G
4,005
2.00%

.00
Treasury Bill  Treasury Ronds Treasury Bonds Treasury Bands  Debentures
[FVPL) (FYOCH (EVPL) [AC)

o
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Human Capital

The Company has eleven dircetly recruiled staff members and five statt members assigned
from the NSB on secondment basis including the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company continued its commitments to develop its employees during the year. Further,
the employees were sent to various training programmes including programmes conducted by
CBSL. The Company has paid 02 months® salary as annual bonus and 02 months’ salary as
performance bonus to the stafT.

Future Initiatives

NSB FMC will continue to grow its investments and trading volumes while diversifying its
business activities into fee income services. The company also has various initiatives planned
lo enhance its customer basc for effective and efficient fund base. The marketing strategies
are tormed to take the company brand into high net worth customers,

The Company will employ a Senior Manager, a Manager for Risk & Compliance function, an
Internal Auditor and a Marketing Otfficer. Company will implement the new ['l system in line
- with its Business Continuity Plans and to become more efficient in its business activities.

The Company has preparcd the Strategic Business Plan for 2020-2022 and following
initialives have heen taken,

# The Company has been taken initiatives o purchase a new Treasury System as
recommended by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka for better functioning of the
business operations. Accordingly, the Treasury System is being purchased from
Credence Analytics India and initial stages are completed at the end ol December
2019, The 1otal cost of the system will be approximately Rs, 90 Mn.

# The Company has relocated its office premises in December 2019 to No. 400,
Galle Road, Colombo 03 [rom the Head Office of National Savings Bank for
independent business operation.

Annual Bopom - 2015
Fund Managemernt



11

Risk Management & Corporate Governance Report

In the course of conducting its business, financial institutions pose risks in order to realize
returns on their investments. On the other hand, risks are assumed to have the potential to
wipe out expected retums and may result in losses to the institutions. Therefore, one way or
another, risk management has always been on the prime concerns of financial institutions and
successful business strategy depends on taking informed, well-timed risks. Through effective
risk management framewaork, institutions will be able to optimize their risk-return trade off.

As a Primary Dealer Company, NSB FMC is mainly exposed to the following type of risks.

*  Market risks

= Liguidity risks

= Operational risks

* Regulatory & Compliance risks

Market Risk Management

Market risk is the risk of losses in positions arising from movements in market prices. These
market prices include interest rate risk, equily risk, foreign exchange risk and commodity
. risk. S'-lncu_ N5B FMC is in the business of dealing in government securities and other debt
sceurities, the Company is exposed only Lo interest rates risk arising from fluctuations in
markel inlerest rates,

In order to manage the markel risk of the Company, NSB FMC has a well defined limit
structlure across the delegated authority levels. Further, NSB FMC operates in compliance
with the rules and repulations of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity risk is the inability of an institution to meet its obligations as and when they
become due, without adversely affecting the Company’s financial condition. Effective
liquidity risk management ensures NSB FMC’s ahility to meet its obligations as they fall due
and reduces the probability of an adverse situation developing.

NSB FMC strives to manage the liquidity risk of the Company by obtaining adequate
collateral for its lending and timely monitoring of its cash flows.

Operational Risk Management

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events. The definition includes legal risk but
excludes strategic risk.

Operational risk can arise due to internal events such as the potential for failures or
inadequacies in the NSB FMC’s processes and systems (e.g. its IT, risk management ot
human resources management, processes and systems), or those of its outsourced service
providers.

Annual Bepor — 2019
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In managing ils operational risk, NSB FMC strives to follow the set internal controls, policies
and procedures in order to avoid losses originated from vulnerabilities in the operational
processes and appearances of threats which together cause operational loss events.

Regulatory and Compliance Risk

Regulatory risk is the risk that a change in laws and regulations will materially impact on
security, business, sector or market. A change in laws or regulations made by the government
or a regulatory body can increase the costs of operating a business, reduce the attractivencss
of investment and/or change the competitive landscape.

Compliance risk is defined as the risk of legal sanctions, material financial loss, or loss to
reputation the Bank may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with laws, its own
regulations, eode of conduct, and standards of best/zood practice.

In order Lo manage the regulatory and compliance risk, the NSB FMC has always taken
measures o operate within the st guidelines of the repulatory authorities. The Compliance
Officer is responsible for independently ensuring that operating and business units comply
with regulatory and internal guidelincs.

Risk Management & Governance Stroctnre

* Doard of Threctors
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the NSB FUND MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED has
pleasure in presenting their Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the

vear ended 317 December 2019, The financial statements were reviewed and approved on
27" February 2020.

Principal Activity
The Company's principal activity is to carry on business as a Primary Dealer,
Stated Capital

The issued Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,700,000.000/~ divided into 170,000,000
Shares of Rs.10/- cach. The entirc Share Capital is issued and fully paid and the sole
shareholder is NSB. Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 2,000 Million. There
were no changes in the principal activities of the Company.

Review of Operation and Future Developments

A review of the activities during the year is contained Performance Review on pages 3 and
the Company performance on pages 8 and the Future initiatives on page 10. These reports
form an integral part of the Annual Report.

Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards (S1.FRS) laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri
Lanka and complying with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007,

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31% December 2019, duly
signed by the Chief Executive Officer, Chairman and one of Director of the Com pany and
pages 24 1o 52 are form an integral part of the annual report of the Board of Directors,

Auditor General’s Report

Auditor General carried out the audit on the Financial Statements for the vear ended 317
December 2019 and their report on pages 20 1 23 on those statements which [orms an
integral part of the annual report of the Roard of Directors.

Going Concern

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going-concern basis in
compliance with the new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS/LKAS) and in conformity
with the generally accepted Accounting Principles and applied consistently and in accordance

Anuuzl Keport — 2019 b
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with the Central Bank regulations. Reasonable and prudent judgments have been made
where necessary when preparing the financial statements,

Capital Fxpenditure

The total capital expenditure incurred on fixed assets and intangible asscts during the vear
amounted to Rs, 3,930,120/

Nonations

There were no material payments of donations made by the Company during the period under
revicw,

Post Balance Sheet Events

Mo circumstances have arisen since the date of the Balance Sheet, which would require
adjustment to or disclosure in the accounts.

Directors’ Responsibilify

" The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements of the Company.

Statotory Payment

All statutory payments EPF, ETF, PAYE Tax, VAT, NBT, E5C and Income Tax ete... have
been paid on due datcs.

The Board of Directors

The Directorate, inclusive of the Chairman of the NSB as the Chairman of the Company,
consists of (7 members. The Company complies with the corporate governance practices
recommended by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, the regulatory authority of the Company and
follow the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS/LKAS) adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

The Board of Directors are responsible for granting approval (0 annual accounts, the annual
budget and reviewing the financial performance of the company on regular basis. The Board
is also responsible for granting approval (o stall appointments, promotions, salaries and major
capital expenditure. The Board has delegated the execution of corporate policy, management
and administration to a management leam headed by the CEQ. The management ensures that
the Board ol Directors is provided with relevant background material to help make informed
of the decisions. and altogether nine Board meetings were held in 2019.

Ansuzl Report 2014 | Py m
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Directors during the vear 2019

Mr. M P Rathnayvake (resigned on 19/02°2019)

Mr. Jayaraja Chandrasekera (resigned on 25:11/°2019)
Mr. S D N Perera (resigned on 07/02:2020)

Mr. D 8§ Kudahetty {resigned on (2/12/2009)

Ms. Ruvinika Kinigama (resigned on 30:01:2019)

M, Kanishka Senanavake (resigned on 30/0172019)
Mr. Aritha Wickramasinghe (resigned on 02/12/2019)
Ms, Reshani Encka Dangalla {resigned on 02/12/2019)

Mr. K D Menuwan Weerasinghe (resigned on 03/12/72019)

—

Mr. Ajith Nishantha Pathirana (resigned on 02/12/2019)

Directors® Inlerest

None of the Directors had a direct or indireet interest in the contracts with the Company other
than those disclosed in Note 35 w the Financial Statements. '

Acknowledgement of the conlents of the Report Ll
As required by Section 168(1) (k) of the Companies Act Nu. 07 of J0IY lhe Boand ol !
Directors hereby acknowledge the contents of this Annual Report |

For and an behalf of the Board of Dircctors,

»
y . et o noTe i
L\.':-L" L= R0y ll\'-T-\ e e F S L i R e =

Chairperson Dircctor

31 May 2020

Annual Bepuert - 2018 Nm
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Report of the Board Audit Committee

I'he Board Audit Committee (BAC} of the Company was constituted 1o assist the Board of
Directors in discharging its responsibilities and [ullilling its oversizght responsibilities for,

{a) Integrity of the Company’s Financial Statements.
(b Performance of the internal audit function.

(e} Performance of the external andit function.

{d) [ntegrity of Business Continuity Plan.

Composition of the Committee
The BAC comprises of the following Directors serving on the Committee during the year
2019,

Mr. Menuwan Weerasinghe - Chairman (resigned on 03/12:2014;

Mr. 5.10.N, Perera - Member (resigned on 07/02:2020)
Ms. Reshani Dangalla = Member (resighed on 03/12/2019)
Meetings

he Commiltee held five (05) meelings during the year 2019 and the altendance of the
Commiltee Members is given bellow,

Name ' Eliﬁ-l;llle to attend Attended
Mr. Menuwan Weerasinghe 5 o 3 -
Mr. S.0ON. Perera 5 ) J

s, Reshani Dangalla 3 ]

Reporting

The Committee directly reports to the Board of Directors abour its activities alonyg with the
minutes of the meetings. The Commiltee is of the view that the wrms of reference of the
Committee were complied in all material aspects.

JLF A-En_..j Y

Manohari Abeysdkera
Chairperson — Board Audit Committes
31 May 2020

Annual Repoert - 2015

NSB

Fund Managemeni



Report of the Board Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

17

The Board Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (BHRRC) constituted (o
responsible for determining the remuneration policy (salarics, allowances and other financial
payments) relating to the company statf. The following activities were carried out by the

Committee during the yvear,

(a) Review the recruitments of the Company.

{b) Review promaotions & confirmations of the statt.

(c) Review the Med ical Scheme of the Company.

Compaosition of the Commitiee

The BHRRC compriscs of the following Direclors serving on the Comumities dur

2019,

Mr. Javaraja Chandrasckara - Chairman (resigned on 25/11/°201%)

Mr. R M P Rathnayake - Chairman (resigned om 19/027201%)
Ms. Ruvinika Kinigama - Member (resigned on 300172019
Mr. Dinesh Kudahetty - Member (resigned on 02/12/2019)
Mr. Aritha Wickramasinghe - Member (resigned on 02/12/2019)

Meetings

g the your

The Committee held four (04) meetings during the vear 2019 and the attendance of the

Committes members is given bellow,

Name Fligible to attend

Attended

Mr. Javaraja Chandrasekara

R M P Rathnayake

Ms. Ruvinika Kinigama

G
<

|

3

1

—
M. I}inéﬂﬁ_l‘i’..udahetty 4
“Mr. Aritha Wickramasinghe 3

R R

]

\*—C.__\*—"—‘.-'-“-‘,":.-..I\\\C"w 'En‘_*.-h.\d:-h- -.-_--'_-ur_--(.v!_'k__ s B

Keasila Jayvawardena

Chairperson - Board | luman Resource & Remuneration Committee

AT Rdaa TN

Annual Reper— 2004
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Report of the Board Integrated Risk Management Committee

The Board Integrated Risk Management Committee (BIRMC) has established to carry oul the
following responsibilities,

(a} Assist the Board of Dircctors in fulfilling its responsibilivies relating 1o establishing an
effective risk management framework in the Company.

(b Implement the Integrated Risk Management policy and other risk relared policies
approved by the Board of Directors and the periodic updating of the Company™s Risk
Management Framework.

Composition of the Committee

‘The BIRMC comprises of the following Directors serving on the Comeittes durtieg the vear
2015%,

Mr. Aritha Wickramasinghe - Chairman (resigned on 02/12/2019)

Mr. S.I0M. Perera - Member (resigned on 07702720210
Mr.-Dinesh Kudahetty - Member (resigned on 0271272014
Mectings

The Committee held three (03) mectings during the vear 2019 and the amendance of the
Committee members is given hellow,

Name . Eli gible to attend Attended

Mr. Aritha Wickramasinghe 3 3
Mr. S.D.N. Perera

e
=

pea | ed ]

Mr. Dinesh Kudaherty

Thiran De Silva
Chaiman - Board Integrated Risk Management Committee
31 May 2020

Annual Beport - 2019 m

Fund Managament



19

Financial Statements

Annual Report— 2019 % MB

Fund Management



HBD O®EHD OEIEE

GoHaW HOITHBTWIN D] sVIUSVHLD
NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

g gatna 1 Eedl oz bkt |
S AR BN TSF T A HEE
My Mu IBAF/ A/NSTHEM T AZD 90T Your Na b [1ate .|3|:| Iufarch 2020

Charperson

NSB Fund Management Company Ltd

Report of the Audilor General on the Financial Statements and Other Legal and
Regulatery Reguirements of the NSB Fund Management Company Led for the year
ended 31 December 2019 in ferms of Qectinn 12 of the Wational Aopdit Act. Na. 19 of
2018.

L. Financial Statcments

1.1 Opinion

The awdit of the financial statements ol the NSB Fund Management Company {“Company™)
for the vear ended 31 December 2019 comprising the statement of financial position as ar 31
Decernber 2019 and the statement of comprehensive income starement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and noles o the Enancial starements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, was cartied out under my direclion in
pursuance ol provisions in Article 154(1) of the Comstiwtion ol the Democratic Soctalis
Republic of 50 Lanka reud in conjunction with provisions of the National Audit Act, Mo, |9
of 2018.My report W Parliament in pursuance of provisions in Article 134 (81 of the

Constlwiion will be tabled in dus course.

In wy opinion, the accompanying financial statements ol the Company give a true and fair
view ol the financial position ol the Company as at 31 December 2019 and of its fmancal
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sii Lanka Accounting

Standards.
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1.2 Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audil in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (ST.AuSs) My
responsibilities, under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditers Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my repon. 1 belizve thar the audin
evidence [ bave obtamed 13 sulbcient and sppropoats to provide & basis formy opinion.

1.3 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the

Financial Stalements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statcments that give a trus and lair
view in accordance with 5n1 Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such inlemal conlrel as
managemnent deterrmne 15 necessary Lo enable the preparation of Fnancizl staements that are

free frﬂ:rl material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror

In preparing the financial statemenls, management is responsible Tor assesding the company's
ability o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. maters related o coing
coneern and using the geing concern basis of accounting valess management either intend Lo

Tiguidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversesing the Company's financial

reporing process.

Ag per Secuon [6(1} ol the National Audit Act, No, 19 of 2018, the company 15 required to
maintain proper books and records of all its income, exponditure, assels and habiliies, (o
enahle anmal and periodic financial statements o be prepared of the company.

g

1.4 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Vinancial Statements

M}-. objective 15 (0 oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emmor, and o issue an
Auditor’s Report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance.
but is pot a guarantee that an audit conducled in accordance with St Lanka Auditing
- Standards will always deteet a material misstatement when it exists, Misstaternents can anse
from Itaud or error and are considersd material if, individually or in the agsrepate, they could
reasonably be expected Lo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basts of

thess hnanclal stalements,



NADQSL
As perl of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, I exercise prolessional

Judgment and maintain professional skeepticism throughout the audit. T also:

» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the linancial statements, whelher
due 1o fraud or error, desion and perform audit procedures responsive Lo those nisks, and
obtain audit evidencs that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis Sor my opimon.

The risk af pov deteciing a matesial misstatemneat resuiting from fawd s higher thun oz

one resulting itom error, as fiand may inveive collusion, forgary, mlenlonul cricssions,

misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of intemnal control relevant (o the audil in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriale in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing

an opinion on the ellectivencss of the internal control of the Company.

« Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonuhleness of

- accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness ol the management’s use of the goiag concerm basis of
acceounting and based om the awdit evidence obtained. whether & mulerial uncertunty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast signiticant doubt on the company’s
ability o continug as a going concern, T T conclude thal a maenal uncertainty exists, [ am
required to draw allention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statemenls or, If such disclosures are mnadequate, to modily my opinion. My conclusions

arc based on the audit evidence obtainad up Lo the date of my anditor’s report. However,

future evenis or conditions may cause the company to Cease 0 CoRDUC as a going

COTMCELTL
s« FEvalugie the overall preseniation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and cvents in a manner that achieves lair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance reparding, among other maltters,
significant audit [indings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that T

1dentify during my audil.

2. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 and Companics Act, No. 7 of 2007 include specific

provisions for lollowing requirements.
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o [ have obtained all the information and explanation that required for the audit and as far
as appears from my examination. proper accounting records have been kept by the
Company as per the requirement ol the section 163-(1) {d) of the Companies Act, o, 7 of

2007 and section 12 (a) of National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018,

s The financial statements of the Company comply with the requirtement of the section 151

of the Compamies Act, No. 0 of 2007,

e ‘lhe financial statements presenled 15 consistent with the preceding year as per the
requirement of the section 6 (13 (d) (i1} of the National Audit Act, o, 19 ol 2015,

e The financial statements presented includes all the recommendations made by me in the

previous year as per the requirement ol the section 6 (1) (d) (1) of the Nulional Audit

Act, No. 19 of 2015,

Rised on the procedures performed and evidence obtained which were limited to matters thal

are material, nothing has come to my attention;

L ]

tor state that any member of the governing body of the Company has any dircet or indirect
' interest in any contract entered into by the Company which are out of the normal course of
business as per the requirement of section 12 (d) of the National Audil Act, Mo, 19 of

2018,

e o stare that the Company has oot complied with any applicable written Lvw. gencral and
special directions issued by the governing body of the Company as per the requirement of

seclion 12 (f) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018

s o state that the Company has not performed according to its powers, functions and dutics

as per the requirernent of section 12 (g) ol the National Audit Act, No. 19 o 2018,
i q :

! e (o stale that the resources of the Company had nol been procured and ulihized
economically, efficiently and effectively within the time frames and in compliance with
{he applicable Taws as per the requirement of the section 12 (h) of the National Audit Act,
No. 19 of 2018,

WPC Widkamaratne |

Auditor General



NSB Fund Man agement Company Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE, INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2019

24

Male TR 201%
Hs. Rs,

Interest Ineome 4 1,449 314,804 L2668, (W07 127
[nierest Expense 5 (1.020,716,437) (B97, 984, AER)
Mel Interest Income 428,588 456 IFL022. 401
Fees & Commission Ineome 58,959,543 S0.T32.826
Fee and Commission Expenses (4.766,151) (3.488.936)
Met Fee and Commission Income 54,19.’-,693_ 46,643,890
Mol Craind(Loss) From Financial Instruments al Fair Value through Profit and f 471,618,904 (154 957,757
|55
Other Income 7 15.678 1,153
Total Operating Tncome 954,410,731 63,679 THE
Collevtive Fapected Credit Loss (102,724a) a7
Net Operating Income 954317005 £3,734.505
Personnel Cuosls &1 {31,062.652) A9 443,632)
Depreciaion & Amortization {1,722,805) (98, 1A6)
Other Experses (18,174,103) (14,289,832
Operating profit before VAT & NBT 03357445 0316885
VAT on Financial Services E (119928391 (3563210
NET Lxpense (15,423,168 (B75,094)
Profit before Taxation & THENSEA7 2 ATR.581
Inerime Tux Expense 1 [252.596.495) (2843 0810
Profit for the Year 515,409,392 35,500
Mher Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to Income Statement
Revaluation of Securities €iain / Lass T Bonds (1T 29,377,187 (2L A0LAT)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified io Income Stalement
Actuarial GaindLoss) on Retirement Deanelit Ohligation {484.431) (397 60
Total Comprehensive income for the yvear 14,302,148 {Z1,765,7800
Earnings I'er Share 11 3.03 CL0003
Dividend Per Share (Hs.) L2 - =

Figures i bruckets indicate deduetions,

The acenuniing policies and notes on pages 28 through 51 form an integral part of the Anancial satements,



NSB Fund Management Company Limited
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION =

Asat 3] December 20149

Nuote 2019 213
Hs. s,

ASSETS
Cashoand Cash Fguivalonts 13 169,305,498 2,582,330
Finarcial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (Trading) [4 10,670,3%0),723 10,187,131 443
Lozns and Acvances o Amoerlizes Cosl iz 2,036,028 24 0FE GRY
Fimanciol Assuts abaonoenized Cost - Hele-lo-Colles: i FUAT A0 BN 1,25, 180.742
Financial Assets at fair value through other comprahensive income 17 1,009,705.774 1.503,120.951
Equity [nvestments at fair value through other comprehensive income 14 2,000,000 L000.0G0
Properly, Planl & Equipment 1 5,349 802 2,734,140
[ntangihle Asses 21 186, 66Y 260 LOE
RiIT Assol 21 42,996,096 -
eferred Tax Asscl 2 Jyem T80
lnenme Tax Receivable " T RA2 T
Other Assols 23 131,310,610 294,500,048
Total Assets 15.986,045.693  16,171,543,200
LIARILITIES & EQUITY
Liahilities
Rorrovwings under Repurchase Agregmenls 2 12.413,0642,752 13,441 494 660
Amount Duz o Related Partics 25 A, 550 4772 4R
Oher Liahilities 20 15,581,657 4. 7720355
Lease Liabifiny 25 40,443 392 -
Incoune Tax Payable [ 0,267,080 -
Ruliramen: enefit Obligation kS 1947 418 1,982,230
Taotal Liahilities 124645922 388 13,448 722051
Equity
Stated Capital ALY 30, 000,000 L O e
[etained Earnings 962 444,515 T AT R B
Special Bisk Reserve Al 713,521,693 h WL R
001 Riserve (38,842,903 (138,220,088

TS imsars
Total Fouity and Liabilities 15,986,045.0%5 L6, 171543, 2000

These Finnncial Statements are in compliance witl the requirsments of the Ueipanies Act Mo 07 al 2007,

el ot

o

Chief Fxeoutive Officer
The G T R e s T e : i S : : P
The Board of Directors is responsibile Lor the preparation and presentation nf these Financial Stalennems, Sigaed Treand o fehal] of

thues board By

Chsirperson

The seccvunling policies and notes i pages 25 throegh ST R an inlegral part ol the Bearaial stileinents,

27 T by 2020

Colonilas



NSB Fund Management Company Limited

STATEMENT OF CIIANGLS IN EQUITY

Wear snded 31 December 2019

Balance as at 01 Januvary 2018
Pralil for the year

CHher Comprehensive TncomedT.oss)
Total Conprehensive Tncome
Shure lssue

Tranzlers

Balance as at 31 December 2018
Frofit far the year

Cither {_:mn.:.'irr:h::rn-'l'w: [noome

Foral Comprehansies lneone
Trans fers

Share Lisue

Dhvidend Fand

Balanee as at 31 December 2009

Figuras in hrackets indizate deductions,

ikioi Statutory Tall
Capital Reserve Fumld
Tapily ein i Reseis
Rs. Hs. Rs,
LI LRI i a6l 470 PILagla42M
% VELADZ BT
. - | -3 ndin
B0 00, 00 -
A.80a

L0 0 Q0

Retained
Earnings

Es.

516,72 %47

35,500

(357,605

(362,101

1hA75

25

Total

Hs.

| 344 580,950

54,500

(21,800,279

(21,765,779

ROC 0,004

576,571,502

2,722 821,157

~ §138,220.089;

W4 3T 1T

50177, 127

1,700,000, 100

(35,842,903

o B e

(4844310

515409592

08 792,756

14,524 851

(128852 545

0143021448

42444515

1,437,123,305

The secounting policies and nofes on pagss 28 roeph 51 Garman intzeral part af the financis’ stammens,



NSB Fund Management Company Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2019

2018
Hs.

1,028,702.003
(989.573.519)
30,132,826
I6,725 #52
(42,702 00w
(41,691,137

(17,380.248)

U148

s,
Cash flows from operating aclivities
Interest receipis 1.332.921.,068
frterest payvment (779, 204,064)
Met fee income receipts 58,959,843
Truding income B, 438,058
Mavment 10 emplovees {27,833,751)
VAT & WNBT on financial services (T0T,691,132)
Receipts from other operaling aelivitics :
Payment on other operating activilics (14,784,799
Crperating profit before change in operating assets & liabilities TE0.103,244
{Increase) / decrease in operating assels
Financial assets at FVTI'L (483,239,279
Financial assets at amortised cost — Loans & Advanoes 4,035,750
Financial wssels al amortised cost Dehr & Other Instroment 91,724,799
Proceeds (rom the sale und maturity of financial invesiments .

Onher assels 165,249,035

Increase / (decreasc) in operating liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost — Borrowings under Repurchase Agreements (1027851025

4,213,778

(7.269.315.309)

253,849,148
{174,055,491)

(13,549,605)

6411382714

Orther liabilities {please specily) 15376031 (40,312,329
Net cash generated from operaiing activities before income tax {465,602,336) [E27 DET.UEH
Income tax paid {51,861,415) {168, 197.050)
Met cash (used in} / from operating activities (517.463,752) {'3'96,18{138_}:
Cush flows from investing activitics

Purchuse ol properly, plant and equipment (3,030, 120) {355,028)
Procesds Mrom the sale of property, plant and equipment 300,299 =
Met (inerease Vdeorcase in Finance instruments at FVOC] BYZ.H0D.373 1,568,512
Investmentin LESB VTR -
Drividends paid : i -
Net cash (used in)/from investing aclivities . $88,172.552 194,213,514
Cash flows from financing activitics e

Principal Payments on RO Assel (1L041.661) -
Advance Mavinent on RO Asset (2 550,000 -
Proveeds [tom Share Issuc s A0 T
Net cash from Doancial aclivities (3.921.661) RO
Net increasef{decrease) in cash & equivalents 16, 787140 (1.970.624)
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the vear 2,581,552 4,553,206
Cuash and cash equivalents at the end of the Period _“W'E;E;_'J..‘:f-.fl,'-'ﬂ 2,582,582

Heconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash at Bank and Cash in [and 169,311,514
Bulanee with Central Hu!ik AT.R04

2 405,105
177,478

169,369,722

2,582,582
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REPORTING ENTITY

N3B Fund Management Company Timited is a limited liability Company domiciled in Sri Lanka. The

registercd office of the Company and the principal place of business is located at No, 400, Galle Road,
Colombo 3

Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

The Company is a primary dealer engaged in trading government securities in the open market,

Parcul Enterprise

The Company is 4 wholly owned subsidiary ol National savings Bank,

Approval of Finaneial Statements

The Financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2019 weare authorred for the issue by the Direclors
un 20252020,

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements which comprise the statement of financial pasition, the statement of comprehensive
Income, statement ol changes in cquity and the stalement of cash Mows. together with the accounting policies
and notes {(the “financial statements™) have heen prepared n accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
{SLIRS/LKAS) as issucd by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of Sri Lanka (OA S Lanka) and the
requirement of the Companics Act Mo, 7 ol 2007,
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BASIS OF PREPARATION
Presentation and Funetional Currency

The financial statements are presented fn Sei Lankan Rupees, the Company's fimetional and presentation
currency, which is the primary economic enviranment in which the Company operales,

The significant aceounting policies are discussed in Naote 3 below,

Basis of Mceasurement

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost hasis excepl lor the
tollowing material items in the statement of financial position:

= Financial Assets designaled at fair value through profit ur Insses and Deht Tnstruments at fair value
through other comprehensive incomeare measured ar faie value,

= Loans and Advances, Debl Tnstnuments al Amortized Cost oand Borrowings under repurchase
anrsements are measured al smortized cosl.

. The hability for defined benefll obligation is recognized as the present value ol the defined benclil
obligation

Comparative Information

The secounting policies have been consistently applied by the Compuny with those of the previous  linancial
year in aecordance with LEKAS (1 presentation of linancial statements.

Funetional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in 501 Lanka rupees, which is the functional currsney olCompany.

Lse of Estimates and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with SLERS requires managemenl o make judgments,
estimates und assumpltions that affect the application ol accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
labilities, income and expenses. Judgments and estimates are based on historical expericnee and other faclors,
meluding expectations that wre belisved 1 be reasonable under the circumstances, Hence actial resulis Imay
differ from those estimates and judomental decisions,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting eslimates are
recognized in the period in which the cstimate is revised and in amy future any periods affected. Informalion
ahout significant areas ol estfimation uncertainty and eritical judpments in applving accounting policics that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the linancial statements is included in the
lelNowing notes: :

Tax

Uncertzinties exist with respect Lo the interprelation of com plex tux regulations und the amount and timing of
luture taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long lerm nature and complexity
of existing contractual agreements, Diflerences arising between the actual results and the assumptions should
necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recordsd. Accordingly, based on such
reasonable estimates the Company establishes the provisions ta be made during the linancial vear.

Financial Asscls at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss



30

The derermination of tair values of financial assets and financial lighilities recarded on the Statement
afFinancial Position for which there is no obssrvable market price are delermined using a waricty ofvaluation
technigues, The Inputs w these models are derived from observable market data where possible,

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o transfer a liability in an arderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on fhe
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the labiliny takes place cither;

[n the principal maket for the asset or liability or in the abscnce of a principal murker, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal oc the most advantageous marker must b
aceeszible by the Company,

The air value of an assel or a Hability s measured using the assumptioms thar markel participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. assuming that market participants act in their sconomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into accounl 1 market participant's ability 1o gencrate
sconamic benelilts by using the asset in its highest and hest use or by sclling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best wse.

The Campany uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available 10 measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unuhservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the (inancial statements are
categorised within the [air value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thal is
sipniticant to the (wir valve measurement as a whale:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markers for identical assers ar liabilitics

Level 2 — Walualion techniques lor which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
mueasurement is dircelly or indirectly ohservable
Lewvel 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level nput thar s signilicunt to the Fair value

mensurament is unohservahle.
Retirement Benefit Obligation

The cost of retirement benefit obligation is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method. The Projectad
Unit Credit method involves making assumprions about expected sulary incrament rate, DiscountsTnterest rates
and staff mrnover factor, Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlving assumplions and long term
nuture, a defined benelit oblipation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumprions. All assumptions are
riviewed at each repurting date, Details of the key assumplions used in the estimates are contained in Note 28.

Going Concern

The management has made an assessment of its abilily to continue as a soing concern and is satisfied that it
has the resources (o conlinue in business for the foresesable Tulure, Furthermore, management 15 nol aware of
any material uncermaintics Lthat may cast significant doubt upom the Group’s abilily to continue as u going
concern. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepured on a poing concern hasis.
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3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Lhe aveounting policies et out below have been applied consistently to all linancial periods presented in these
fimancial slatements.

ASSETS ANTY BASES OF THEIR VALUATION
31 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balunces with banks, and bank owverdrafis.

12 Financial Instroments
i) Classilication of Financial Tnsiruments

The Company classifies irs financial assets into the following measurement carecories:
* Those to be measured at fair valve (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss); and
* Those to be measured at amortized cost,

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managzing financial assets and the contractual Lerms
of the financial assets' cash flows,

The Corpuny classifies ils financiul liabilities at amortized cost unless it has designated Lubilitics ar fair value
threwgh profit or loss or s required to measure liabilities at fair value through profic or loss such as derivative
liabilities,

ii) Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost

Db Insiruments

Investments in debt instruments are measured at amortized cost where they have:

*  Contraclual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, thar represent solely payments of principal and
interesl on the principal ameunt outstanding; anc

= Are held within a business model whose objective is achisved by holding ro colleet contraciual cash flows,
These debl instuments are initially recopgnized at fair value plus divectly atriburable transaction costs and
subsequently measured atamortized cost. The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stape
expected credil loss model described below in Note (vi) Tmpairment of financial assets,

iii) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

Dehe Tnstrumenty

Investments in debl nstrumemts are measured al fair valye throughother comprehensive income where they have;

* confractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates. that tepresent solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

* are held within a business model whose ohjective is achieved b both collacting contracrual cash flows and selling
linancial assels.

These debt instruments are initiafly recognized at fair value plus directly atributable transaclion costs and
subsequently measured at falr value, Gaing and lnsses arising from changes in faic value are included in other
comprehensive income within a separate component of equity. Tmpairment losses or reversals, interest revenue and
toreign exchange gains and losses are recognived in profit and loss. Upen disposal, the cumulative gain or Ionss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified (rom equity Lo the ncome statement.

The measurement of credit impairment 15 based oo the three-stage cxpected credil loss model as applied tw linancial
assels at amortized cost. The expected credit loss model is deseribed below in Note {¥1) Tmpairment of financial assets.
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Fquity fnstruments

Investrnent in equity instruments that ace neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by the
Company in a business combinalion to which SLFRS 3 ‘“Business Combination’ applies, are moeasured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, where an irrevocable clection has been made by the management. For
portfoline where munagement docs not consider un irevocable election of adopting fair value (hrough other
comprehensive income, by defanlt such investments shall be measured ar fair value throngh proficand loss.

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transivrred o profit or loss, Dividends on
such invesiments are recognized in profit or loss.

iv) Items at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Items al fair value through profit or loss comprise:
{a) Ttems held for trading;
(k) [Irems specilically desianated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recoenilion; and
(L) Debt instruments with contractual terms that do nol represent selely paymeants ol principal and interest,

Financial instruments held at faic value through profit or loss is initially recognized ar fair value, with transaction
cusls recognized in the income statement as incuered. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value and any gains or
lussses are recognized in the income statement as they arise.

Where u financial asset is measured al fair value, a credit valuation adjustmant iz included o reflect the crodit
waorthiness of the counterparty, representing the movement in fair value allributahle to chiangzues in eredit risk.

fa) Financial Instraments Held for Trading

A financial insoument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally lor the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near verm, or forms part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is cvidence of shurl-term profit laking, or it s a derivalive not in a qualilying hedpe
relatiomship.

Lrading derivatives and trading securilics are classified as held for trading and recopnized at fair value,

b} Fingnciad fnstruements deségnated as measured af Fair Value Throuoh Profit ur Loss
' o~

Upon initial recognition, (inancial instruments may be designated asmeasured ar fair value through prelic or loss. A
fmancial assct may only be designated ar fair value through profit or loss i doing so climinztes aor signilicantly
reduces measurcment or recognilion inconsisiencies (ie, eliminales an accounting mismateh) that would otherwise
arise rom measuring linancial assets or lahilities on a different basis,

A financial liahility may be designated at fair value through profit or loss il it climinates or sigmificantly reduces an

aceounting mismalch or:

* 1T 4 host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives; or

"Ll linancial assets and lighilities are both managed and their petlormunce evaluated on a fair value basiz in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment srateny.

Where a financial liability is designated at fair value through profit or loss, the mevement in fuir value atributable to
changes in the Company’s own credit quality is calenlared by determining the changes in credit spreads above
observablemarker interest rates and is presented separatcly in other comprehensive income.

v} Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accountling

Derivative linancial instrumnents are contracts whose value is derived from one or more underlying price, index or
other variable, and lypically comprise of instruments such as swaps, forward rale zpresments, (ulures and options.

All derivatives arc recognized in the balance sheet at fair value and are classified as trading except where they are
designated as a part of an effective hedpe relationship and classified as hedging derivatives. The carrying value of a
derivalive is remeasured at fair value throughout Lhe life of the contract, Derivatives are carried a5 assets when the
fair value is positive and ax liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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vi) Impairment of Financial Assers

The Company applics a three-stage spproach Lo measuring expected credil losses (LCLs) (or the followin 2 cutegories
ol linzncial assets that are not measured at fair value thraugh profil or loss:

* Debt imstruments measured ar amorlized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income;

* Loan commiments; and

= Financial guaranice conrracts.

Mo BCL is recognized on equily investments.
Financial assets migrate through the following three slages based on the change in credit risk since initial recopnicion:
Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposurcs where there has not heen a significant increase in credit risk sinee initial recognition amd Lthal is not
credil impairedupon origination, the portion of the lifetime LCL associated with (he probability of default sventy
occurring within the next 12 months is recognized Company determines 12 month ECL. from cuslomers wham are
not signilicantly cradit deteriorated.

Stage 2: Lilelime ECLL — not credil impaired

For exposures where there has been a significunt increase in eredit risk since initial recagnition but is ool eredit
impaired; a lifetime ECL (Le. rellecting the remaining lifstime of the financial w83t} 13 recounized,

I consistent. with the polivics of the Company, significant deterioration is measured through the rebuttable
presumption of 30 days past due for loans and receivables in line with the requirements of the standard,

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

Fxpasures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events thal have a detrimental impact on the estimared
future cash fows of thar assel have occurred. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifelime FCL is
recognized and interest revenue is caloulated by applying the effective Inlerest rate 1o the amaortized cost (net of
provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

Determining the Stage for Impairment

At each reporting dare, the Company asscsses whether there has been a significant nerease in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognilion by comparing the risk ol default ocowrring over the expected life bolween the
reporting date and the dale of initial recognition, The Company considers reasonable and supportahle mformarion thal
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and gualitative
information and also, foreard-looking analysis.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as asser qualily deteriorates. IF, in a subseguent period, asscl gualicy
improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant incresse in credil risk since origination, then the
provision [or doubtful debts reverts from lifetime LCL to 12-months ECIL., Exposures thar have not deteriorated
significantly since origination, or where the deterioration remains within Lhe Company”s investment grade criteria, or
which are less than 30 days past due, are considered to have a low credit risk. The provision for doubliul debes for
these fimancial assuts is based ona 12-months ECL. When an assel is uncollectible. it is writlen off against the related
provision. Such assets are written ofl’ after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the
loss has been derermined. Subsequent recoveries ol amounts previously writien ot reduce the amount of the expense
i the income statement,

The Company assesses whether the credit risk on an exposure has increased significantly on an individual or
collective basis. For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial instruments are grouped on the
busis of shared credit risk characteristics, taking inte acvount instrument tvpe, credil risk rafings, dale of initial
recognition, remaining term to maturity, industry, of the borrower and other relevant factors,
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Mewvaremens of ECLx

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted estimatas ol expected loss, and ave measured as follows;

+ Vinancial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash shortfalls over the
expecled life of the [mancial assel discoumted by the effective interest rate. The cash shorfall i the difterence
between the cash flows due to theCompany in accordance with the contract and the cash ows that the Company
CXPECIE 10 receive,

* Financial assets that ars credi-impaired at the reparting date: as the difference belween the pross carTying amount
and the present value of estimaled future cash flows discounted by the effecrive interest rate.

* Lndrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the diflerence belween the contractual cash [lows that are due
to the Company if the commitment is drawn down and the cash Nows that the Company expects to receive,

* Financial guarantes contraces: as the expected payments to reimburse the holder less ary amoumts that the Company
EXPeCls W recover,

For further details on how the Campany calculates EClLs including the use of lorward looking informarion, refer to

the Credit quality of financial assets section in. For details on the effect of modifications of loans en the measurement

of ECL refer to note onProvision for cxpected credit loss,

ECLs are recognized using a pravision for doubtful debts account in profit and loss. In the case of debt instruments
measared at fair value through other comprelensive income, the measurement of ECLs is bused on the three-stane
dpproach as applied ro financial assets at amortized cost. The Company recoghizes the provision charge in profit und
luss, with the corresponding amount recognized in other comprehensive income, with no reduction in the CArTving
amount of the asset in the balance shaet,

lmpairment Charges on Loans and Advances

Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and iming of luore cash Nows when
defermining an impairment loss for loans and advances, In cstimating these cash flows, the Company makes
judgments mainly ahout the borrower’s linancial simation and the nel realizable value of collateral These estimales
are: based on assumptions about a number of factors and setual resuls may differ, resulting in future changes o the
impairment allowance.

A collective assessmont of impairment takes into account daty from the loan portfielio (such as credit quality £ levels
of arrears, credit utilization, ete.), and concentrations of risk and economic data {including levels of GDF Growth
Eale erc, ),

vii) Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments

A linancial assel or financial liability is recognized in the halance sheet when the Company becomes a parly to the
contractual previsions of the instrument. which is penerally om tradedale. T.oans and receivables are recoanized when
cash is sdvanced (or settled) to the borrowers.

Financial asscts ar fair value through profit or loss are recognized initially at fair value, All other financial ussers are
recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable ransaction costs,

The Company derccognizes a financial assel when the contractual cash Henws from the asset cxpire or it transiiors its
rights to receive contractual cash flows on the Hnancial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred. Any intercst in tansferred financial assers that is created o retained by the
Company is recognized as 1 separate asset or lability.

A fnancial liability is derccognized from the balance sheer when the Company has discharged its obligation or the
contract 1% cancelled or expires.
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Froperty, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and Measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured al cost less accwmulated depraciation und accumulaled
tmpairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes expenditures (hat are directly altributakle to the acquisition
ol the asset,

FPurchased sollware that is inlegral to the lunctionality of the related equipment is capitalized as a parr of
equipment.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recopnized in profit and Inss on a straight line basis over (he periods appropriate o the
estimated uselul life of the different types ol assets on the rates siven below.

Purniture and Fittings 0% pua.
Computer and Equipment  20% p.a
Cfice Couipinent 10% pa,
Swilt Fquipment 23% pa.
RENT Asset Ower the T.ease Perlod

Depreciution of an assel beging when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the dates on which the
assel is classilied as held for sale or is derecognized. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values arc
reassessed ul Lhe reporting date,

Depreciation was charged to the entie month ol acquisition and no depreciation was charged for the entire
month of disposalitrunsfer up to 31.12.2018. Depreciation Policy has been amended tw charge the deprecistion
Iromn the date of use with effect from 01012019 (o comply with the group policy,

Depreciation rate of Computer Fauipment has been revised from 23% 1o 20% with effect rom 01012017 1o
comply with the group policy.

Intangible Assets

An intangible asset s recognized if it is probable that filure cconomic benelils will flow w the entity and the
cost of the asset can be measurcd reliably. Intungible assets wilh finite useful lives are measured ut cost Tezs
avcumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets ure assessed o be either finite or mdefinite lntangible assets with linite
lives are amortized over the useful econamic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible usset may be mmpaited. The amortization period and the amortization method for an
intangible asset with finite uselul lite are reviewed at least at cach finaneial year-end. Changes in Lthe expected
wsetul life or the expected patiern of consumptions of future cconomic beaefits embodied in the assers s
accounted for by changing the amortization period ol method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in
accounting eslimates, Amortizations expense on intangible assets with finite lives js recognized in profil and
lass on the straight-line basis over the estimared useful lives, from the dale they are available for use. The
estimated useful life of intangible assers with finite life is as follows:

SWIFT license fee 5 Yoears
SWIFT entmrance fee 5 Years
Board Pac 3 Years
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LIABILITIES AND PROVISTONS
Employee Benelits
Defined Benefit Plans

The liabilily recognized in the Statement of Financial position in respecl of defined benelit plan is the present
vilue of the defimed benelit obligation at the reporting date, The delined benefit obligation is caleuluted
annually using the projected Unit Credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation s
determined by discounting the estimated fulure cash flows using the interest rutes that apply Lo the currency in
which the benetit will be paid and that have terms tomaturity approximating to the lerms ofthe relaled Hability,

Defined Contribution lans - Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefic plan under which an entity pavs fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have ne legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Frplovess arc
cligible for Linployces® Provident Fund contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund eonrributions in e with
respective statutes and repulations. The Company contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments o emplovecs
to Fmployees” Provident Fund and Emplovees’ Trust Fund respectively and is recopnized as an expense in
profit and loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees,

Short-term Benefits

Short-term employee benelit obligations are measured on an wndiscounted basis and are cupensed as the
related service is provided.,

Non-derivative Financial Liahilities

The Company initially recognizes debl securities issued and subordinated liabilitics on the date that Lthey are
originated. All other financial liabililies are recognized initially on the frade date at which the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrumenr,

The Company derccognizes a linancial liability when its contractual ohligalions are discharged or cancelled ar
R,

Financial assets and liahilities are olfset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to selte on net
hasis or (o realize the asset arid settle the liability simuliancously,

The Company has the lollowing non-derivative foancial liabilities: Borrowings under repurchase agreements
and other pavables,

such financial liabilities are recognived initially at fair value plus any directly stoributable transsction costs.
Subscquent te initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Frouvisions
A provision is recognized il as a resull of a past evenl, the Company has a present legal or constructive

obligation that can he estimated reliably, and it is probable that an oulllow of economic benefits will he
required to sertle the obligation,
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Income Statement
Revenue Recognition
Interest and Similar Income

For all financial instroments measured at amortized cosl, interest bearing financial assets classified as
financial instruments desipnated at fair value throush profit or loss, interest income s recorded vsing the
effective interast rale, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimared future cash receipls through the
expected lile of the financial instrwment or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net canying amount of
the fimancial assel. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument {[ur
cxample, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly altributable 1o the
instrument and are an mtegral part of the elTeetive interest rule, but not future credit losses.

Fee and Commission Income

Fez and commission income include accounts servicing fees. invesrment managzemant  fees, sales
commission and placement fees which are recognized when the related services are perlhinmad,

Trading Income

Liains or losses arising from the sale of dealing securities are accounted Tor on the date ol transaction in
profit and loss,

Expenses
Inlerest and Similar Expenscs

Fuor all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, buorrowings under repurchase agreements, interest
expense is recorded using the ¢etive Dnrecest rate, which is the rate that exactly dizcounts calimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the linancial instrument or 3 shorter peried, where appropriare, o
the net carrying amount of the financial liability. The caloulation tikes into account all contractual terms af
the financial nstrament and includes any fees or incremental costs that are dirvetly atributable to the
instrument and are an integral part of the ¢/Tective interest rate, but not future credir losses.

Income Tax Fxpense

Income Lux cxpense comprises of current and deferred tax, Current and Deferred s sre recognized noprofit
and Ioss excepl o the extent Lhat it relates Lo items recognized directly in equity, when it is recognized in
Euily.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tx payvable on the txable income for the yuear, using tax rales enacred al the
reporting date and any adjustments to tax pavahle in respect ol previous vears.

Dreferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary diflerences belween the carrying amaounts of assets and
ligbilities for financial reporting purpescs and the amounts vsed for laxation purposes, Deferred Lax is
measured at the tax rates that are expecied to he applicd to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been cnacted or substuntively enacled by the reporling date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that il is probable that future taxable profics will he
available against which the temporary differcnce can be wilized. Deferred lax assels are reviewed al cach
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that il is no longer probuble that the related tax benefit will be
realized.
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Yalue Added Tax on Financial Services

The busis for the computation of Value Added Tax on financial services is the accounting profil before
income Lax adjusted (or the economic depreciation computed on prescribed rare and emoluments of
emplovers.

3. statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows has been preparcd hy using the “Direct Method” of preparing cash flows in
accordance with the LIKAS 7. Cash and cash equivalents comprise shor-term, highly liquid investment that
is readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insiznificant dsk of changes in value.
The cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with barks.

310 Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (SLFRS 16) — Leases

This Standard sers out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of laases,
The objeclive s to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that Faithfilly
represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial stalements to assess the
citect that leases have on the financial position, financial performance, and cash (lows of an entily. This
Standard supersedes the fallowing Standard and interpretations;

{a) LKAS |7 — Leases;

(h) IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Conraing a Loase;

() S1C-15 Operating [.eases — Incentives: and

(d) S1C-27 Evaluating Lthe Substance of Transactions Involving the 1esal Form of a Tease,

The Company shall apply this Standard [or ammual repurting periods beginning on or after | January 2019,
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NOTES TO THE TINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yoear cnded 31 December 2019

8.1

8.2

INTEREST INCOME

Interest en Treasury BillaBonds /R Repe

Inlerest on Debenlures

INTEREST EXFENSE

Interest Lxperse on Repurchase Agreements

g
g 018
Rs. Rs.
1 406,594,474 1237.545.644
42,720,420 28,463,483
1449 314.8%4 1.266, 007,127
iy 018
Ks. s,
1,020,726.437 BO,984 f00
L0 30_"_.‘@4}_7 9,984 and

NET GAINALOSS) FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LO¥SS

Realised
L.nrealised

" OTHER INCOME

Profit or Fided Assels TransferMemoval

Chher [ncorne

FROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit Before laxation is stated after charging all expenses including the following
Audicor's Remunaration

Depreciation on PPE

Amatisation of Intangible Assels

Personnel Cosls (8.1

Fersonnel Costs

Salaries

Defined Conceibution Plan Cost - EPF and 111

Defined Benefit Plan Cost - Retirement Grataity
Cther Staff Cost

her Persone] Cost of Seconded Vmployees
Defined Contritation Plan Cost - EPF and ETEF

Contributon 1o Pension Fund

VAT ON FINANCIAL SERVICES

20N 201%

Hs. Es.
91,438,058 16,725,832
380,180,846 (371,713.60%)
471,618,904 (354,987,757
2019 2018
s, Rs.

4048 -
14,630 L 193
18,678 1193

19 2018
Ks. Rs.
1,212 KM 540,000
1,137,227 904,157
Y94 79,995
3,062,652 39,847,012
2019 2018
Hs. Hs.
18,345 882 26,442,341
1,478,438 1,452,706
480,731 350,597
10,757,601 11,597,583
J1.062.652 30 843,032
29 2018
Ra, Es.
B92,313 751,777
THTS10 5770661

Fhe walue base lor value added tax for the company is the adjusted accounting penfic Lefore 1ax and emoluments of
employees. The adjustment o the sccounting profic before tax is for economic deprecialion computed on prescribed rates,

inatead of the rates adopled in the lnancial starements,
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I

INCOME TAX EXI'ENSE 2019 2018
s, Hs.
Current Income Tax
Clurrent Inecorme Tax charge on erdinary activicdes for the vear 252,561,060 2991136
Londer/{Over) Provision of current Laxes in reapect of prior vears - 3
252,861,060 2,991,136
[referred Income Tax
Crelerred Taxution Charged Reversaly (264,565) (145,055}
lncome Tax Expense Reported in the Income Statement _252,396.495  Z2.B43.081
Reconciliation between Current Tax Expenses and the Accounting Profit RITTEY 2018
Rs. R,
Accounting Profit {Loss) before Tax Trom Conlinuing Operations THEN05,887 2.RTEFRI
Incame not Liable Tor Tax . (3,263,940
[rher Agpregule Disallowed Items 138,314,425 12,271,872
Orher Agpregale Dedectible (tems [3,245,099) (1.2003,994)
ilis e 903,075,213 10,682,629
Income Tax Rate 28%% 2%
Carrent Income Tax Expensc 352,861,000 2,991,144
252,861,060 20010, 136

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The caleulation of earnings per share is bused on profit agributable 1o the ardicary shareholders lor the veur, divided By the
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year and caloulued as follows;

2019 2018

Hs. B
Frofit Auribulable o Ordinary Shareholders 15,409,392 35,500
Weighted Avernge Mumbers of Ordizary Shares 170,000,000 10506 KAy
Earnings Per Share 303 [.0005

DIVIDEND FEK SHARE

Dividend per share is caleulated by dividing the dividend by the number ol ordinany shares in issues a5 at the year end

2019 2018

s, Hs.
Weighted Average Mumbers of Ordinamn Shares FIE00,000 e
Dividends puid {Rs) . ]

Dividend per share R Z
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14,

15,

1.

17,

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 2% 20b 8

Rs. Rs.
Cash gt Bank and Cazh in Hand 169,311,919 2A05.105
Malanve with Cenral Bank 57 80 177.47%
[mpainnent (,225) (44
Cush & Cash Equivalents for the Purpose of Cash Flow Statement 169,365, 4% 2,582,539
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FATR VALUE THROUGH PROITT AND LOSS (TRADING)

2019 205

Rs. Iis.

t'II:-ZI.:i'LuI'\_r' 1ills ﬁ._ﬁﬂ."‘.,]ﬁ:'\,él‘)ﬁ

fi1361, 119

3.933464,943

Lreasury Donds 4005035227 ) P A25.T 326
10,670,390,723 L 18T, 151 445
LOANS AND ADYANCES AT AMORTIZED COST MG HHE
. Ra.
“Loans & Advances fram Tanks . .
Lazars & Advances fram Other Customers 20,936,928 24972087
0,036,928 21.972.687
The fair value ofthe securities pledged for Roverse Repo (s s 23,994 B37 {2015 - Re 33,901,637)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST - HELD TO COLLECT Y LR
s, Hs.
Creasury Monnds 3678,011.816 3,673.095 083
leheniumes 233,500,494 331245 a4
Tinpisirmenl {143,267 W2
40023 189,742

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHNENSIVE INCOMFE

2009 MR
Has. Hs.
Treasiry Bonds 1,009,705,774 1.603,129 9601
LI09,705,774  1,603.129.96]
EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOMIL
2018 2018
Directors Dircetors'
{losl Yaluation Cost Yaluartion
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs,
Invesrment i
Lanka Financial Services Burean Limited 2,00k, 0040 2,000,000 1,000,000 10, 004
2,000,000 2,000,000 1000, LOnm.000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Agac il December 2014

2.

191 Fully Depreciated Property, Plant & Equipment

0,

-

PROPERTY. FLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Cost

Coanpuler Tguiprient
Sl Tguiprment
DiMice Eguipment
Furnitare & Fittinzs

Accumulaled Depreciation

Compurer Equipment
St Equipament
CelMce Cyuipment

Fumiinre & =itngs

Carrviong Amount

o MerFuok Vabue ws o 31 Decembor

The wmitial cosl uf Tully depreciuted Property, Flant & Sgquipment, which arz sl i use as at eporting dals (s a3 follows;

Computzs Eguipment
Swilt Lyuiprnent
O1fice Fguipment

Furminre & Firings

INTANGIBLE ASSET
Cost

SWIFT License Fee
SWIFT Entrance Tee

Dovard Pac

Accumulated Amoriisation & Toapairment sy

EWIFT License Foo
WL Entrance Fee
Dvizred Pac

Carrying Amount
Carmymg Amounl

Fully Amortised Intangible Assets

The initial cost ol Tully smortised infangible sssoes. which are still

SEWLT Licanse lea
SWIFT Entrance [ee

Balance as a1 Additinns
B1ALZNEY during rthe vear
Hs. Hs.
A7 LG Wil Koy
013,903 -
1,202,053 1,294 915
G10,648 (IR
7,733,771 3,930,120

Dispnsals! Transfers
during e vear

15,
(111,7540)

{377,200

AT ATE

Balance as at
JLL2200Y9

Hs,

3.337.314

513,503
2119767
|, 845 485

(1,246,422)

10,417,469

Balance as at
L0200

Ms,

2901 ,087
1190

Charge [or the
yer

Hs.
TRI G2

Depreciation on
DHsposals' Tramslers

Rs.

[N RS

Balance as a1
I 2N

Rs.
3,441,479

B354

405 882 212,385 £122,389) 333,878
28,740 42200 (TIE06N 155,009
4 4979.6110 1,037,227 (M9, 171 5067667
2011 20018
R Rs.
5349802 2,734 140

Balance as at
1209
Hs.
1,058,502
G11.051
A0 000
2,365, 5103

2m9 28
K. R

951,704 9d2 54

413,903 613,501

216,490 G690

58 FTT.059

Additions Disposals Translers Balance as at
during the vear during the veur F112/20149

. Hs, Kz,

: = CLUSH, 562

- - 811,031

- - AT 00

B - - 2,369,593

Balance as at

Charge for the

Dreprecialion dn

Balunce as st

DAL 20T veal Dhsposals' Transfers 311202019
Es. Hs. Hs. Hs,
1,058,542 - - hT

911,031 L1031
T 79,999 - 213331
2102 026 79,9094 - 2,183,925

201y 008

Rx. Rs.
180668 266,655

imuse as at Repacting date 5 as [ollows;
209 2018
s, Hy

LiEES02 LUsE 62
11,03 ainnl



NSB Fund Management Company Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT. STATEMENTS

Agal 31 December 2019

=]
rh

ROU ASSET (RIGHT-OF-TSE ASSET)

Crpening balanoe
AdditionsDisposals
Closing Balanee
Drepreciztion

Met Assel Value

DEFERRED TAX ASSETHATITADILITY)

Halance at the beginning of e vear
Cmginatinnd reversal ot emparary ditteronces
Ralance at the end of the year

The oloeing Deferved oo Arses dalanoe ralafas i the fodiowing
Accumelaed Depreciation
Tnerament Benelil Ohlizalion

" OTHER ASSETS

Other Receivahles

Feoervable From Treasuny

WOETT Reasivahlz (Motional 7o)
WHT Recaivahle ([ebenire Intarest)
WATT & NHI Hecoivahle

Aclvance pand fo Fixed Assels

BORROWINGS UNDER REFURCHASE ACREEMENTS

I within | vear

AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED FARTY

fationul Savings Bank - Current Account

(hber Tavables

OTHER LIABILITIES

Walue added Tax (VATY & MET Pavahle
Sumlry Crediters

Acoroed Expenses

Advances Beonved

LEASE LIAKILITY

Opening Balance
Additivns

Rant Advince Paid
[nterzst Expense
Principal Pavment
Closing Balance

2Ty TN

R, Rs.
43,601,674

43,601,674

[BIE,574)

42,996,094 -
1R B 018

Rs, s,

T3.056 [T4.959%
264565 48055
337,651 73086

{481,107} IRER-E T
§25.277 33,032
ORI e L R .
2004 2014
s, Hs.
5874085 3,991,820
A8,939,587 246,930 587

35,497,937

8,512,207
HERDLE
34208019

206,560 A4

131,311,610
R{AL s
Fs. Hs.
12,413,642,752 1244l 494 4480
12413642732 12,441 494 840
200 20IE
s, Iis.

- 4 Rsy
508,530 A4 EEA
5,035,530 472 480

2019 2014
Rs. Rs.
4,250,791 -
10,046,023 230,000
10,783,924 4,542 643
SO0 000
23,301,607 RN
200 HH
s, Hs.
43,600,674 i
{2 RN
TH3 378 -
LHLH L P

40,443,392

a3



ISH Fund Management Company Limited

NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Asal 3] December 2019

2B, RETIREMENT BENETIT OBLICATION

Dulance at the heginming of the vear
Currenn Service Cost

Loterest For the vear

Drefici Surplus) charpe Tor the vear
Fuvments mads dnring the year
Dalamnce at the end ol the year

min
Rs.

1,082,256
174,934
ma7a7
484,431

2947418

2018
R,

|, 233 650
201,607
149,303
397600

|.BR2,256

LEAS 18 requires the uge of actuzrial iechugues o make a celiable estunate of the amount of the retirement benetin that the

cimployees have eaned incelwn Tor ther servics i Gee current and prior periods aod discount Grat bens (i o

1 procecizd unil

Cradit Method in arder g determine the prezont valoe of the retirement benefic ohhigation and the cerrent sorase coae his requires
an zntity ta determine hows mneh beneldt iz arribeable 1o the current ansd prier periods and wpoamake sstinates about demapraphin

and finaneal variables Quat will miluence the cost ol the benelL

4.1 The Emploves Genelit Liallity s hased on the Projscted Umi Credic method camied ool as e 31 December 2010% The principal

agsumptions uzed in derermining the eost ot cmployss Denciits were:

Dhizcount cale
Tulure Salury [nerement
Stafl Tumireer Rae & Average Furire Warking, Lt Tune

A Group -
Staff Turnanver Kate U=
Avarags Futwee Workosg Lile Tie - Years il

182 Sensilivity Analysis - Salary/Dizscount i2ate

el 13 1Y
19 e

R

2018
12, Eis
3500

i
My

Walues appearing in the Financial Stasnents sre very sensicive o the changes in finanzial and aon-financial assumptions wssd

A sensihvicy was carnicd cut a5 follaws

Fffeet on the present value of Defined Benetit Obligation
Lne pereentage paint changs w the discount rate
e percerrags point changs i the salary sscalation rate

Asswmnplions
Financial Azsumprians = Rate of discount, Salacy increment 1ale
Lremograpphic Azsumptions - Moctalite, Sl twm over, Thaability, Belirsment aze

29, STATED CAPITAL
Crpening, Balanee

sl Thring the year
Closing Balunoe

+1 %%
422042
s10.022

2009
Fs.

174D

1%

05411

433.295)

12D

The olders of ordinary shares ace entitded W recerve dividends 2s declared Trom Lime o Gme and are enlitded o ons vaole per share

ut Annusl General Meeting of the company

ML SI-’I':_(ZI.-\I. RISK RESERVE

Al the begioning of tie year
Transfemed during the year - 75% of profic aftor mx
Al the end of the year

2019 2018

s, Hs.
S84.669,345 SR RA0ATN
128,852 545 Au75
713,521,604 Sid G40 315

A0 o ordar wopromote the salery, soundness and the sabilitg of the Frimany Drealer (2000 system and te hoild up PO capital bass,
Primary Drealers (PDs) are reguieed w lrassfer 4 sum oot less Guan 1% ol their profilalier lex annually o a Special Risk Reseve,

Acconlingly, Company transferred 25% out of Mt Protit to the Soecial Risk Resorve

44



NSB Tund Management Company Limited

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Asar 31 December 2019

S0 MATURILY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

A agiyses ol wnciesl besong assels anl bidilzes by (ein remining periods of e repening due iz as follows,

Asat 31 December 2010

Assels

Goreernrent Szcariies a Far Value
Through I 8 L

Crovermmenl Secanies b Aoncabeeed Cos)
Coarprraie Debenbioes

Ciovernment Seoarities ar FYTOCT

Loans & Advances

ROILY Asgeis

Tarlan] Irderesd Pavrnimge Assels
Tutul non Interesi Karning Assety

Taotal Asscts

Linbiities

Cirvernrrien ] Secunlics sold unslern

M Apesmcnl

Lz Linlility
Talal Dlerest hearing Lialilities
Vaal aon inl beaeing Lialilities

Shnrelolder's Fiual

Tuotal Equity and Liakilities
Agal 31 Pecember 2008

Agsels

L.es% Uin Jial1l T3 KR T Wure than Tuial
3 Months Wonths Years ey 5 Years
Ha R, Hs. Hs, Hs, R,
2ULLEDASY LVRE B AG0 R B T 1.5 1283 QOIS HEATILAHETIE

WIRET 2T z 1400517534

2035270408

JETEOILELS

Govemment Secuntic: wl Foir Value
Through F & L

Crowernrnent Secunlics i Ao teeed sl
Corpacats Debeniongs

Croverument Securities at FVTOCT

Toans & Advances - Coslemens

Padal Inferest Earning Assels
Tutal non Interest Farning Assety
leilal Assels

Liabilitics

Covemiment Szcuriey schd under
H_np:lrl;llilsu Agresman

Total Interest bearing Liahilivics
Total npm int, bearing 1isbililies
Shareholder's Fund

itk Kaguily amd Tialilities

11,606,415 58,501,788 12 40,5050 102,404,924 - 185,453,127
45,207 K74 ; THE 0 - 17,1435 1003, T2, 77

12,659,525 HTT Al ’ . 20,936,925
1,389,309, 4413431 13,445,853 EREERT G ATLE13 A6,
WII60ILY  GEIDGSHAED  AFL0MIBE I ITTOTHI03  4ETIRETL L5ETTAD44G
08,551,229

15,986, 145, 693
VIR0 208,750,620 : . - 12 413,642,722
1,929 541 4 82 TIE 12,720,883 n e | NS TR B CLIE e
11 ._]_'ll.‘u_._]:'l A5 1303271, 357 12,736,443 {1 A ESAHF G4 12,454, 004G, 1 24
194,836,264
3,337.123,308

15,086,145, 604

Lans thun Jroll lewd Jms More thun Total
3 Munilhs Muonths ¥y Yoeurs 5 Yeurs
T, My 125, 5. Hs. Hs.
S12, 359069 FR2.3 25060 ERc E e | i ik asd 1 10 27 1187 131 445

937,334,594
12,595 54°
596 06

3

a2, 113,082

2.075,005 085
aalLl

10,736,207,082

10,604,374 14268, 362 i : 2407687
TO4,0A4,430 276,130,242 S,848,177,331 6, 163,679,511 L 848,422,320 15,840,443,834
331,009,575
T IGLTLEI00

15, 736.207.082

FINAMCTAL ASSETS PLEDGET AS COLLATERALS

The Campany hos pledesd asacts that are i its Stafeoecl ol Fina

a1pp|".'| I el

Cenvermmenl Securities

13 872,324,037

3,411 494,650
13,447,494 659

7227591

712,811,158

it Bagiton in g b day bangiciun which ae conductsd vndsr the vaual lerms ard conditions
wernenl: Fhe Company hos pledeed the invesinent in pavernment s2cintica againgt securities hald undar repurehass agrocments.

nin P E]
Ra. Its.
14,506, 2LL.012
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By

3l

FAIR VALLUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Instruments Recordad at Fair ¥aloe

Ihe following is a deseriplion of bow Giir values are determined for finaneial instruments thial are recorded 2l Tuir valug nsing valuation
echriques. These incorporzie the Company’s cstimate of assumptions thal a markel participant woull make when valuing the
inslirments,

(# b Financial Assets Held for Trading

Cluaden! Tepuities amd 3r1 Lanka Government Secarities - Treasury 5ills and Twnds included in Finaneial Assets Held for Trading ace
valued using markst prices.

wheregs debr seourities are valued using discounled cash Do valuaton modsls which incorporate observable and non oheervable
market data

{0} Financial Investments - Fair Valoe Through Other Comprehensive Lncome

Fair Walue Through Cther Comprebensive [nenme Tinancial Assets valoed using valustion techniques ar pricing models primasily

consist ol unguoled eouitics

Nétermination of Fair Value and Fair Value Hicrarchy

The Company vses the following hizrachy for determining anel disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
mehnigue.

Tevel |2 Chioted umadjostied) prices in active markets fr idenlicn] nssels or labililies

Lewel 25 Chber techniques for which all inpuis which have s signilicsee efleot on the rocorded fair value are obaesvable, either dirsctly
o todinectly

Lewel 3: Techniques which wse inputs tha bave o significant offect on the recorded fair value that are oot based oo observable marke
darz

Determination of Fair Value and Fair Valoe Hierarchy

level 3 Taital
Rs. Rx.

Level Level 2
Rs. Ra,

Asat 31 December 2019

Finanvial Assels

Finaneial Azsets - Held tor Trading
Fair Walus T hreugh Ccher Comprehensive Inoome
Fapity Tnvestmenis

Asal 3 December 2018

Financial Assets

Financial Aszets - [eld for Trading
Fair Value Through Geher Comprebensive Income

Pty Tovestments

[0,670,290,727 : z

1,009,703.774

2000000

10,670,390

1.009,7015,774

Z 0k

10,4670,390,723

IO TR 151,445

10,187,151 443

S 1,60%.129,96] % 1603, 129,961
_ . . 1000, 000 1,000,000
10,187,151,445  1,603,129.961 1,000.000 11,791,281,406
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A5

Asar 31 Decamber 20149

33

i 5

FAIR YALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Conid., )
Determination of Fair Yalue and Fair Yalue Hierarchy
Set out below 15 a comparison, by class, 0f the carrving amounts and Gair vaToes of he Company's (rsmelal insiraments thal sme nal

carried ol fur value inothe Gnancial stafements, This able doecs oot includs the fair values of non-financial asscts and non-financial
Tinhililics,

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Carrving Amaount Iair ¥alue Carryimg Amdunt Irair ¥alue
Hs. Rs. Hs. Hs,
Financial Assets
Csh anid Bank 164,165,498 169,365, 448 2.582,53

Loans and Advances 20,956,921 LSRG 24 472 6587
Financial Aszets as Held to Collec " JATROILELS A 3,346,232,792
Tula! Financial Assols LE6H214.242 40 REA

Finaneiul Liahilities

Barrpwings under Repurchase Apreemants 12,415,642 722 12,415 642,752 [ B L T N W - L T
Amounts Due w Related Parties 030,530 3039550 A7 2 ARD ATLA80
Total Financial Liakilities _ 12ATRGR22EZ 1241RGED 262 [FAD067 140 15441867, 144

Fair Value of Financial Assels and Liabilities oot Carried gt Fair Value

The following describes the mathadialogies and assempliors used o delermine Sair values for those financial instruments which are ne
alecady recosded at Sair walue in the Fine

vinl Slzlemenls,

Assets for which Fair Value Approximates Carrying Value

[For linenueial uesets and financial linhilites chee bave a shor term mamurny it i3 azsuinad that the carrying anounts appraximse their
lair value, This assumption s also applied oo demand deposits, savings acconnts wilhin g ospes Be maluerily, Toaling rale instrumenls,

fixed rate instruments having matorities within 12 months.

Fixed Hate Finaneial Instruments

The: fair value of fixed vate financial asses and Habdlities (ebher than wssets ard Hakilites with maturites wilkin 12 months) carried ai
enentised cost are estimated by comparing marker interest rates when they were firar cecopnised with currant market rarcs for similar
financial instrements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 18
Az at 31 December 2019

M.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview
The Company bas exposure w the following risks from its use of financial instruments;

= Mlarket risk
« Dperational risk

This note presents information about the Company™s exposure o cach ol lhe above risks, the Company’s objectives,

Py P » ) 1
policies and processes lor measuring and managing risk, and the Company®s management of capital, Further quantilalive
disclosures are included throughout these linancial slalements.

Risk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility [or the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework.

IHe risk management policies of the Company's are established to identify and analvze the risk faced by the company's, 10
sel approprigle isk limits and contrals and o monitor risks and adherence e limits.

Risk munagement polivics and systems are reviewsd regularly to reflect changes in marckel conditions and the company's
activilivs,

The Board of Direclers oversees how management monitors compliance with the Companies risk management policics
and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the rishs feed by the company,

Market risk

Liguidity risk and the interest rale risk are monitored monthly using eap analysiz and the re-pricing impact of interest rate
fluctuations on the portfolie, Stress wesling based on FYBP analysis o manitor the impact of intzrest rate variations on the
value of the portfolin is also assessed and both resulls sre reported to the Board .

Operational risk

A software system has been pul in place lo automate core functions of the Company with onling IS and other risk
management facililies. A Dhisaster Recovery Site for SWIITT connectivily, [T system and other business lunctions of the
Company bas been sel up al N3B premises in Mahasapama & Inteenal awdil conducted by OMicers ol the Audil &
Vigilance ivision of the WSDE is responsible for monitoring the aparation of the internal control svstem,

A Caarterly assessment of Company performance s conducted by the Tublic Debt Department of the Jentral Bank as the
regulatory authority. Stress Testing o measure risk impact ol inlerest rates on the portfolio, Cumulative Gap measuring the
Liguidity Risl. Cuapital Adequacy Ratin and Capital Leverage are menitored under this assessmont and the results
infurmed by the Ceniral Bank are torwarded oo the Hoard of [Yrectors of the Compuany,
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NSB Fund Management Company Limited

NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Az ul 31 Devember 2019

i}

i

.

&%

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Transactions with key management personnel
Key manapament personnal comprise of the Dircetors of the Company and the details of the transactions with them are s ollows,

Laoans to key management personnel
Mo loans wene given o Dircctors of the company,

Key management personnel compensation

Remuneration paid to Directors during the yvear was amounted to Ks, 542 5005 (2018 - Bs. 1,005,000~

Transactions with related parties
The fellowing transactions were careisd ol with retated parties during the vear soded 31 Dacember 2019,

Ttems in Tneome Statement

Mational Havings Bank

Interese Beceived from investment in Eeverse Ropo
Hervies Charge Lncome

ETGS Charges

Tnlerest Paid on Repurchase apresmenis

Custiclion Fee

Trzstae Fue

Ttems in Statement of Financial Position

Mational Savings Bank

loveszments in Hoverse Bepo, Tressury Bills and
Treasury Domds

Rorriwing under Repurchase apresmenis

(Other Pavables

Trisiee Fee Reveivable

Custedian Fee Recaivahle - Botrust

Other Recsivahles

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMNCIES

There were no capital commitments and conngenuies as al 31 December 2009

EVENTS OCCTRRING AFTER TIE REFORTING DATL

2014
s,

23520 853
12,599,508
1,241,550
10,458,096
X ARTNN
1,250,100

1300000
5,039,330
250,000
20,000
5,400 1)

51

2008
Rs.

7,884,045
10,421,256
Yo 25
44104, 9%
f. 000,000
300,000

472480
250,000

Mo cirenmstances have arizen sincs the repored date which would require adjustments to or disclesure in the Onancial stalements and
ne material impact to the financials of the company due w Covid- 19 pandemic,
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- NSB FUND MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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- A Tully owned subsidiary of National Savings Bank,
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- NSBFLELXXXX

- Auditor General
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Annual Reporl 2014 : NSB

Fund Management



